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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

%  NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS ‘jymme AMY ST. BVE
4 /EASTERN DIVISION ;3 JUDGE AMY ST. EV

UNITED STATES OF AMERF.' L E B‘ 05 CR 6821

V. Violationg: Title 18, United
DCT ¢ 5 ams States Code, Sections 666,
1341, 1343, 1346, 1851, 1556,
STUART LEVINE and MICHARL W. Di.)ﬂgmsand 2

BNTOIN REZKQ, CLERK, U.§. DISTR

CT
alse known:as “Tony Rezko” cagEBERSEDING INDICTMENT

4 (Under Seal) "
? ' COUNT ONE .} MAGISTRATE JUDGE EROWN
Mail Fraud

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY charges:
1. Ar timee material to this Superseding Indictment:
 Relevant Entities and Individuals
a. The Teachers' Retirement System of the State of
Tllinois ("TR8") was a public pension plan created by Illinois law
for the purpose of providing pension, survivor, and disability
benefits for teachers and administrators employed in Illinois
public schools except in the City of Chicago. It served
approximately 325,000 members and annuitants, and had agsets in
excess of approximately $30 billion. TRS was funded by annual
contributions from teachers, their employers, and the State of
T1lineis, as well as investment income.
b. The activities o¢f TRS were directed by an ll-member
Board of Trustees. Certain of those trustees were appointed by
atatute by the Governor Qf the state of Illinois, while other

rrustees were elected by teachers and annuitants. Among ite other
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responsibilities, the Board of Trustees reviewed and veoted to
approve or reject proposals by private investment management
companies to manage funds on behalf of TRS. AL any given time, TRS
asgets were managed by numerous different investment management
companies. These companies were compensated by TRS for their
activities, typically through fees calculated as a percentage of
the TRS assets they managed.

c. In carrying out all of their duties, including
reviewing and deciding whether to approve or reject proposals by
private investment management firms to manage TRS assets, members
of the TRS Board of Trustees owed a fiduciary duty to the
beneficiaries of TRS and were required to act solely for the
penefit of the beneficiaries of TRS. In order to assist members of
the TRS Board of Trustees in evaluating propcsals to manage TRS
assets, TRS required an investment firm to disclose, before TRS
decided whether to authorize iﬁ to manage TRS assets, all finder’s
fees, placement fees, and commigsions (hereafter collectively
raferred to as “finder’s fees”) to be paid by that investment firm
in connection with its TRS business. Such fees at times were paid
py investment firms to individuals or entities in exchange for
bringing the investment firm to the attention of TRS or
farilitating the communications between the investment firm and

TRE.
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d. TRS was an organization and state agency that
received federal funds in excess of $10,000 during each calendar
vear from 2001 through 2004.

e. The TIllinois Health Facilities Planning Board
(*Planning Boérd”) waé a commizsion of the 8tate of Illineoils,
established by statute, whose members were appointed by the
Governor of the‘Stata of Tllinois. State law regquired an entity
seeking to build a hospital, medical office building, or other
medical faecility in Illinois to obtain a permit, known as a
woertificate of Need” (“CON”}, from the Planning Board prior to
beginning construction.

£. pursguant to the Illinois Health Facilities Planning
act (5 ILCS 3%60), and the Planning Board Rules, members of the
Planning Board were required to base ﬁheir decision on an
application for a CON on a reagsonable and objective application of
the pertinent standards set forth in the Planning Act and the
Planning Board Rules. In carrying out all of their duties,
including reviewing and deciding whether to approve or reject an
application for a CON, membera on the Planning Board owed a
fidueiary duty to the people of the State of Illineis, and were
required to act solely for the benefit of the people of the State
of Illinois. Prior to each meeting of the Elanning Board, the
staff of the Planning Board reviewed each CON application to be

presented at that meeting and prepared a written analysis of
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whether the application was consistent with the standards. for the
igsuance of a CON. The Planning Board could approve, deny, oOr
defer an application, or it could issue an "intent-to-deny," and
the application ordinarily would be reconsidered by the Planning
Board within a specified time period.

g. The Tllincie State Beoard of Investment (“ISEI”) wag
4 board of the State of Illinois as established by statute. ISBI
overgaw the net investment asgets of the General Assembly
Retirement System, the Judges’ Retirement gystem and the GState
Employeeg’ Retirement System,‘which ware public pension systems
maintained for the benefit of members of the Illinois state
legiglature, state judges, and state employees. The activities of
Iap] were directed by a 9-member Board of Trusteea. Five of the
ISET trusteés were appointed by the Governor‘of the S5tate of
Illinoig, while the four remaining trustees were members of the
ISBI Board by statute because they held other positions. Among its
other responsibilities, the ISBI Board of Trustees reviewed and
voted to approve or reject proposals by private investment
management companies‘to manage funds on behalf of ISBI.

h. The Illinois State Universities Retirement Syatem
(“3URS”) was a public pension system eatablished by statute on
behalf of state universities, community colleges, and state
agencies. The activities of SURS were directed by a 9-member Board

of Trustees, all of whom were appointed by the Governor of the
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State of Illinois. Among 1its other respongibilities, the QURS
fBoard of Trustees reviewed and voted to approve or reject proposals
by private invegtment management companies to manage funds on
behalf of SURS.

i. Defendant ANTOIN REZKO {"REZKO”) wag a businessman
who owned and operated fast food restaurants and a real estate
development firm. REZKO raiged significant amounts of money for
certain Illinois politicians.

7. Defendant STUART LEVINE (“LEVINE”) was a member of
the TRS Board of Trustees and the Planning Board.

k. Jogeph Cari was an attorney. He also was a partner
and the managing director of a private equity firm that in or about
2002 received $£35 million in TRS funds to invest. In or about
2004, Cari’s private aquity firm was seeking investments from other
public pension funde established by the State of Illinois,
including ISBI.

1. cteven Loren was an attorney. He and his law firm
ware outagide counsel to TRS.

m. tndividual A had longstanding relationships with TRS
trustees, including LEVINE, and TRS gtaff members and was
associated with a real estate asset management firm that managed
hundreds of millions of dollars on behalf of TRS.

n. Individual B was & political fundraiser and

associate of REZKO.
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Q. Mercy Health System Corporation (“Mercy Hospital"i
wae a not-for-profit corporation located in Janesville, Wigconsin
that operated hospitals and provided health care gervicea to the
public in Wisconsin and Illinois. Beginning in or about 2003,
Mercy Hospital sought a CON to construct a hospital in Crystal
Lake, Illinois.

P Jacob Kiferbaum owned and operated Kiferbaum
construction Company (“Kiferbaum Construction”), a construction
company located in Deerfield, Illinois. Mercy Hospital planned to
use Kiferbaum Construction to build the proposed Crystal Lake
Heospital.

T1linois Lawe Regarding Conduct of Public Officials and Bribary

q. Pursuant to the criminél laws of the State Df
I1linois, relating to bribery (720 ILCS 5/33-1(d)), LEVINE, as a
member of the TRS Board and the Planning Board, was prohibited from
agreeing to accept any property or personal advantage which he was
not authorized by law to accept, knowing that such property or
perzonal advantage was promigsed or tendered with intent to cause
him to influence the performance of any act related to the
employment or function of any public officer.

r. Pursuént ro the ecriminal laws of the BState of
I1linoig, relating to official misconduct (720 ILCS 5/33-3),
LEVINE, as a member of the TRS3 Reard and the Planning Board, was

prohibited from doing the following in his official capacity: (1)
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performing any act in excess of hia lawful authority, with intent
to obtain a personal advantage for himself or others; and (2)
soliciting or knowingly accepting, for the performance of any act,
a fee or reward which he knew was not authorized by law.

2. Pursuant to the State Officials and Employees Ethics
Act (5 ILCS 430/5-50), effective December 9, 2003, members of the
TRS Board and members of the Planning Board were prohibited from
having any material communications with a representative of a party
concerning a pending matter, or ex parte contacts, without
reporting that contact to their respective Board in writing.

t. The Planning Board’s Ethical Guidelines, which were
circulated in August 2003, also prohibited ex parte communications,
providing, inter alia:

A Member should not accept, or offer to accept, either
directly or indirectly, any economic opportunity or thing
of value, if a substantial possibility exista that the
opportunity or thing of value is made available to the
Member for the purpose of influencing an official action.
A Member should not selicit, accept or agree to accept,
directly or indirectly, anything of value from any person
having an interest in any matter which is pending before
the BRoard, under circumstances from which it might
reasonably be inferred that the donor's purpose is to
influence an official action....

A Member should not communicate with any party in support

of, or opposed to, a matter pending before the Board or

with the representative of any such party concerning such
matter, except as a matter of official recorxrdl[.]
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The Scheme To Defraud
2. Beginning no later than in and about the spring of 2003
and continuing through at least in or about July 2004, in the
Northern District of Illinois, Eastern Division, and elsewhere,

STUART LEVINE and
ANTOIN REZKO, also known as “Tony Rezko,”

defendants herein, together with Joseph Cari, Steven Loren, Jacob
Kiferbaum, Individual A, and others known and unknown to the Grand
Jury, devised and intended to devige, and participated in, a scheme
and artifice to defraud the beneficiaries of TRS and the people of
the State of Tllincis, of money, property, and the intangible right
ro LEVINE’'s honest services, by means of materially £false and
fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, and material
omissions, and in furtherance thereof used the United Stateslmaila
and other interstate carriers, and interstate and foreign wires,
which scheme is further described below.

overview of the Scheme

3. It was part of the scheme that defendants REZKO and
LEVINE, with the assistance of Cari, Loren, Kiferbaum, Individual
A, Individual B, and others, fraudulently used and sought to use
the pogition and influence of LEVINE and other members of the TRS
Board of Trustees and the Planning Board to obtain financiél
benefits for REZKO, LEVINE, and their nominees and associates. In
the course of the scheme, REZKO and LEVINE golicited and demanded
millions of dollars in undiscloéed kickbacks and payments, and

8
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received and directed hundreds of thousands of dollars in actual
undisclosed kickbacks and payments, for the henefit of REZKO,
LEVINE, and their nominees and asscciates, from investment firms
seeking to do business with TRS, and from Kiferbaum. Among the
defendants’ fraudulent activities in the course of the scheme were
the fqllowing:

a. REZKO used his relationship with certain State of
T1llinois officialz, to ensure that REZKO and LEVINE had the ability
to influence the actions of TRS and the Planning Board for the
penefit of themgelves and their nominees and agsociates.

k. REZKO and LEVINE used LEVINE'S poaition wiﬁh TRS,
and the influence of REZKO and LEVINE over TRS etaff, TRS Board
members, and Loren to assist certain investment funds in obtaining
TRS funds, in exchange for payments by those investment firms and
their representatives to persons and entities identified by REZKO
and LEVINE.

c. REZKO and LEVINE agreed to establish or acquire a
company that they or their nominees would control, and to use their
influence with TRS Board members and TRS staff to ensure that their
company would be chosen to make hundreds of millions of dollars of
real estate investments for TRS, without disclosure to TRS of
REZKO' & and LEVINE’e financial interest in that company. REZKO and

LEVINE expected to share the profits from thig company.
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d. REZKO and LEVINE assisted Mercy Hospital in
receiving a CON frﬁm the Planning Board for a new hogpital in
Crystal Lake, I1linoig, to be built by Kiferbaum Cfonsctruction, in
exchange for a kickback to be paid by Kiferbaum to REZKO and LEVINE
of approximately $51 million or more.

REZKO's and LEVINE's Efforts to Obtain and
Retaipn Influence Qver TRE and the Planning Board

4. It wag further part of the schemelthat REZKO sought to.
influence certain State of I1linois officials, in order to ensure
that LEVINE, and persons.allied with REZKO and LEVINE, retained and
‘obtained memberships. on the TRS Board and the Planning Roard that
enabled REZKO and LEVINE to influence the actions of those boards
for the benefit of REZKO, LEVINE, and their nominees and
associates. As part of this aspect of the scheme:

a. In or about the spring of 2003, when certain State
of Illinois officials advocated consolidating TRS, the Illinois
State Board of Inveétment, and the State University Retirement
gystem, into a single pension fund, LEVINE énd Individual A
approached REZKO and Individual B for assistance in defeating this
propogal. REZKO and Individual B agreed to use their relationships
and influence with high-ranking State of Illinois officials to
oppese the pension consolidation plan, and in exchange, LEVINE and
In@ividual B agreed to use their influence and LEVINE's position at
TRS to ensure that TRS ﬁsed investment firms and hired lawyers

identified by REZKQO and Individual B.

10
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b; In or about the spring of 2004, REZKO and LEVINE
agreed that LEVINE, wheose term on the TRS Board was due to expire
in May 2004, needed to be reappointed to the TRS Board and that
additional TRS Board members needed to be appointed who would
cooperate Qith REZKO and LEVINE. REZKO agreed to use his
relationships and influence with high-ranking State of Illinois

. officials to facilitate these efforts.

c. Tn or about early May 2004, REZKO instructed a State
of Illinois employee respomsible for facilitating appeointments to
state boards to move forward on LEVINE's reappointment to the TRS
Board, and represented that the reappointment had been approved by
a high-ranking state official. The high-ranking state official
subsequently directed that LEVINE be reappointed to the TRS Board.
Also in or about Méy 2004, two new members were appointed td the
TRS Board who voted with LEVINE on matters of interest to REZKO and
LEVINE. ‘

REZKO’s and LEVINE’s Efforts to
Obtain Payments From Investment Firms

5. It wag further part of the scheme that REZKO and LEVINE
solicited and received, from certain investment firms geeking to do
business with TRS, payments by those investment firms and their
agents to nominees identified by REZKO and LEVINE.

REZKO, LEVINE, and Individual C

6. It was further part of the scheme that REZKDland LEVINE

agreed that they would use their influence and LEVINE's position on

11
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fhe TRS Board to assist Individual C in obtaining TRS funds for

Investment Firms 1, 2, and 3, on whose behalf Individual C was

working. In return, REZKO and LEVINE agreed that LEVINE would

instruct Individual C to pay to individuals chosen by REZKO a share

of the finder’s fees that Individual C receifed from Investment

Firms 1, 2, and 3. In connection with this aspect of the scheme:
Invagtment Firm 1

a. In or about the spring of 2003, when Individual C
WA seekiné TRS funds on behalf of Tnvestment Firm 1, LEVINE told
Individual C that Individual C would have to split his finder’s fee
from Investment Firm 1 with a local public official, who would not
do any work in return for the payment.

b. REZKO subseguently told LEVINE that REZKO did not
want Individual C to split his finder's fee with the local public
official. REZKO said that he would supply LEVINE with the naﬁe of
another individual who would split Tndividual C’s fee. LEVINE in
turn told Individual ¢ that the local public official was not going
to ghare Individual C's fee from Investment Firm 1.

o. on or about August 14, 2003, the TRS Board approved
an investment of a total of 550 million in two investment funds
operated by Investment Firm 1. Individual C received a total of
4375,000 from Investment Firm 1 for acting as a consultant to

Tnvestment Firm 1 in connection with TRS. REZKD, LEVINE, and

12
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Individual C agreed that Individual ¢ would pay £250,000 of that
fee as he was directed by LEVINE.

d. 1LEVINE asked Loren to prepare a draft contract that
would appear to justify Individual C's splitting his finder’'s fee
by paying $250,000 of that fee to a third party. LEVINE instructed
Loren to draft a sham consulting agreement that would pass gcrutiny
if someone like the U.5. Attorney looked at it. Loren drafted a
sham consulting agreement for Individual C, in order to conceal the
fraudulent nature of the payments by Individual C to a third party.
Loren gave the draft consulting agreement to LEVINE.

a. In or about early 2004, REZKO told LEVINE that
Tndividual C should eplit his finder’s fee from Investment Firm 1
with Individual D, who was involved with REZKD in the operation of
a chain of pizza restaurants. LEVINE relayed this instruction to
Individual ¢, and gave Individual C the sham consulting agreement
that Loren had prepared in order to conceal the frauvdulent nature
of the payments.

f. In or about early 2004, Individual C agreed with
Individual D to pay the $250,000 in two installments, with thé
first being made in or about early March, 2004, and the second on
or about July 1, 2004.

q. Tndividual C and Individual D each signed the sham
consulting agreement. Although the consulting agreement indicated

that a company owned by Individual D would provide gervices in

13
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exchange for payments by Individual C, no serviées were expected to
be provided or were provided by Individual D or his company.

h. on or about March 4, 2004, acting at LEVINE's
direction, Individual C gave Individual D a check in the amount of
$125,000 payable to Tndividual D's company as the first installment
of the money that Individual D would receive. In turn, Individual
D used the money that he received from individual C in substantial
part for the penefit of REZKO.

i. In or about late April 2004, Individual D asked
Tndividual C to pay the remaining $125,000 immediately, instead of
waiting for July. AL that peoint, Individual ¢ refused to make the
payment early.

j . After learning that Individual ¢ had refused to pay
Individual D the $125,000 immediately, REZKO spoke with LEVINE.
REZKO directed LEVINE to arrange for Individual € to make the
payment to Individual D.

k. on or about April 26, 2004, LEVINE directed
Individual € to make the $125%,000 payment LO Individual D
immadiately, which Ipdividual C agreed to do. Individual C gave
Individual D a check for §125,000 made payable O Individual D's
company that same day. In turm, Tndividual D used the money that
he received from Individual C in substantial part for the benefit

of REZKO.

14
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Investment Firms 2 and 3

1. In or about late 2003 and early 2004, LEVINE agreed
with Individual C that LEVINE would use his influence and position
At TRS to help Investment Firms 2 and 3 get investments from TRS.
Tndividual C agreed that he would gplit any finder’s fees that he
received from Investment Firms 2 and 3 at LEVINE’s direction.

m. Investment Firms 2 and 3 each agreed to pay &
finder’s fee to Individual C, and each appliéd for TRS funds.

. LEVINE directed Loren to assist Individual C by
providing advice about the sorts of investments that TRS would
consider and reviewing investment proposals submitted by Individual
¢ and others. Loren subsedquently met with representatives of
Investment Firms 2 and 3 and discussed potential TRS inpvestmenta.

o. LEVINE arranged for TRS ataff members to meet with
representatives of Investment Firms 2 and 3 and indicated to TRS
ataff that REZKO and LEVINE wanted TRS staff to recommend that the
TRS Board approve investments in Investment Firms 2 and 3.

. on or about April 12, 2004, LEVINE directed
Individual C to share his potential finder's feeg from‘Investment
Pirms 2 and 3 with Individual E; who was a friend and business
associate of LEVINE. Individual E provided no services to
Tndividual C or Investment Firms 2 or 3 in connection with their

applicaticns to receive TRS funds. LEVINE arranged with Individual

15
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F that LEVINE would later receive a portion of the paymentg
Individual E received from Individual C.

g. on or about April 14, 2004, REZKO and LEVINE agreed
that they would each receive aﬁproximately one-third of the
finder's fees that they expected Tndividual C to receive for TRS
investments in Investment Firms 2 and 3. At that time, REZKO and
LEVINE expected that Individual ¢ would receive approximately
250,000 from Investment Firm 2 and $1 million from Investment Firm
3.

T. TRS gtaff initially recommended that the TRS Board
approve a $25 million investment with Investment Firm 2 and the TRS
poard was acheduled to vote on that recommendation at the May 2004
TRS Board meeting. Shortly pefore the May 2004 TRS Board meeting,
TRS staff learned that Investment Firm 2 had not initially
dieclosed that Individual C would receive a finder's fee as
required by a TR3 questionnaire. After learning that the TRS staff
was concerned about Iﬁvestment Firm 2's failure to disclose the
finder’s fee for Individual C, LEVINE tried to help Investment Firm
5 remain on the TRS agenda.

s.‘ on or about May 20, 2004, LEVINE was approached by
law enforcement agents. As a result of that approach, LEVINE
atopped trying to help Investment Firm 2 remain on the TRS agenda.

TRS staff ultimately changed its recommendation on Investment Firm

16
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2 and the TRS Board did not approve any investment for Investment
Firm 2 at the Ma? 2004 TRS Board wmeeting.

t. TRS staff had not comple;ed its review of Investment
Firm 3's application when LEVINE was approached by law enforcement
agents on or about May 20, 2004. After that date, LEVINE did not
further attempt toO agsist Investment Firm 3'g application.
Tnvestment Firm 3'S application was never presented to the TRS

Board.

REZKO, LEVINE, Cari and Individual F: Investment Firm 4

7. It waé further part of the gecheme that in the spring of
2004, after Investment Firm 4 had submitted an application to
receive funds from TRS, LEVINE,‘ with the assistance of Cari,
attempted to coerce Investment Firm 4 into hiring a consultant who
would receive a findexr’s fee from Investment Firm 4. REZKO and
LEVINE agreed that they would share evenly the finder's fee that
Investment Firm 4 paid, and REZKO directed that his share of the
finder's fee be paid to Individual F, a businessman and associate
of REZKO, and to whose wife REZKO owed a substantial sum of money.
In connection with this aspect of the scheme :

a. Tn or about late February oI early March 2004, after
Investment Firm 4 had made a presentatiou to TRS staff members
sesking funds from TRS, LEVINE spoke with Cari about Investment

Firm 4. LEVINE and Cari agreed that LEVINE would help Investment
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Firm 4 get funde from TRS and that Investment Firm 4 would hire a
consultant chosen by LEVINE,

b, On or about April 14, 2004, REZKO and LEVINE
discussed Investment Firm 4's application for TRS funds. LEVINE
told REZKO that Investment Firm 4 had agreed to hire a consultant
chosen by LEVINE in exchange for LEVINE’s help. REZKO agreed to
provide LEVINE with the name of a person who would receive the
consulting fee on behalf of REZKO and LEVINE. REZKO and LEVINE
agreed that they would sghare evenly the finder’s fees that
Inveatment Firm 4 paid to the consultant they chose. At that time,
REZKO and LEVINE expected that Investment Firm 4 would pay the
consultant they chose approximately $7%0,000.

C. In that same conversation, REZKO and LEVINE
digcuzged an application by Cari’s private equity firm for ISEI
funds. LEVINE had arranged with Cari that Cari’s private eguity
firm would pay a 2% finder’s fee to a person identified by LEVINE.
REZKO and LEVINE agreed that they would share evenly the finder’s
fees that Cari‘s private equity firm paid, which they expected
would be approximately $700,000,

a. In or about late April 2004, REZKO provided LEVINE
with the name of Individual F as the person who would receive the
congulting fee from Investment Firm 4. LEVINE sapoke with
Individual F and confirmed that Individual F would receive a

finder’s fee from Investment Firm 4, although Individual F would
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not be expected to do any actual work for Investment Firm 4.
[LEVINE and Individual F agreed that Individual F would send a
portion of the finder’s fee he received from Investment Firm 4 to
a company controlled by Individual E.

e. REZKO told Individual F that Individual F could keep
approximately 10% of the finder’s fee that Individual F received
from Investment Firm 4. Individual F understoed that REZKO would
get a portion of the remaining money that Individual F received
from Investment Firm 4.

£. In or about late April 2004, LEVINE directed Loren
to prepare a draft contract for Investment Firm 4. LEVINE told
loren that there was going to be a split of finder’s fees relating
te the TRS investment in Investment Firm 4. Loren prepared a draft
compensation agreement, which LEVINE sent to Individual F.

g. on or about May 1, 2004, LEVINE discussed with
tndividual E the possibility of changing the agreement between
REZKO and LEVINE so that REZKO would keep the entire §750,000 fee
from Investment Firm 4 while LEVINE and Individual E would keep the
entire $700,000 fee that LEVINE expected from Cari’s private equity
firm.

h. on or about May 10, 2004, an attorney in the Turks
& Caicos Islands who was associated with Individual F, attempted to
contact the president of Investment Firm 4, and left a message

stating that the attorney had been referred by Individual F and
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wanted to discuss the placement of funds. Investment Firm 4 had
not had any previcous contact with Individual F or the attorney, and
had not sought the services of a consultant or used a consultant in
its application to receive TRS funds.

i. on or about May 19, 2004, a compensation agreement
was faxed to Investment Firm 4 by the attorney £from the Turks &
Caicose Islands. The compensation agreement provided that
Investment Firm 4 would pay approximately a 1% finder’s fee toO
trndividual F's company. In fact, neither Individual F nor
Individual F's company provided any services to Investment Firm 4
in exchange for the payments required under the contract.

j. on or about May 20, 2004, Cari, acting at LEVINE's
direction, made a series of calls to Investment Firm 4. He spoke
to the president of the company, and other repregentatives of the
company. Cari said that Investment Firm 4 was supposed to pay a
finder's fee, and that this should have been taken care of already.
cari said that unless Investment Firm 4 g8igned the consulting
contract before the enﬂ of the day, Investment Firm 4's application
would be dropped from the TRS Board's May agenda. Cari said that
he was close to representatives of TRS and a high-ranking Illinois
public official. cari said that if Investment Firm 4 wanted to get
money from TRS, the company had to hire a congultant. Cari said

that if Investment Firm 4 did not enter into the consulting
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agreement by the end of the day, the company was going to lose the
TRS commitment.

k. Oon or about May 20, 2004, in a subsequent phone
call, Cari spoke to two attorneys who represented Investment Firm
4. (Cari said that if Investment Firm 4 did not sign the contract
with Individual F, Investment Firm 4 would be taken off of the TKS
May agenda. Cari said that this was how things are dene in
Illinois. Cari said that the attorneys should do whatever they
needed to do, but this had to get done.

1. After LEVINE wag approached by law enforcement
agents on or about May 20, 2004, he did not try to interfere with
trvestment Firm 4 or its application for TRS funds. Investment
Firm 4 received approval for an approximately §85 million
investment at the May 25, 2004 TRS Board meeting. LEVINE voted to
approve the investment.

REZKO, LEVINE, and Individual G: Investmaent Firm 5

e T e —————it

g. Tt was further part of the scheme that beginning in about
2003, REZKO and LEVINE agreed to assist Investment Firm 5 in
obtaining funds from TRS, in return for a fee that Investment Firm
5 would pay to a person degignated by REZKO, who would then share
rhat fee with REZKO. In connection with this aspect of the scheme:

a. REZKO told LEVINE that Individual G, who worked with
REZKO's real estate business, would act as a finder on REZKO’'s

behalf. LEVINE agreed to use his influence and position at TRS on
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behalf investment firms that Individual G brought to TRS, including
Investment Firm 5.

k. In late 2003, Individual G arranged with Investment
rirm 5 to receive a fee equal to 1% of any investment that TRS made
with Investment Firm 5. REZKO and Individual G discussed the
manner in which this fee would be split between REZKQ, Individual
G, and others.

c. LEVINE used his influence with the TRS staff to
cnsure that Individual G and representatives of Investment Firm 5
met with key members of the TRS staff, as well as with Loren.
LEVINE encouraged TRS staff to recommend that TRS place funds with
Investment Firm 5.

d. In or about early May 2004, REZKO and Individual G
agreed that Tndividual ¢ would not be digclosed to TRS as the
recipient of the finder‘s fee from Investment Firm 5 because of
Individual @’s close association with REZKO. Individual G
instructed Investment Firm 5 to replace Tndividual Gfg name o0 the
disclosure with the name of Individual H, who was a business
associate of Individual @ and a political fundraiser.

e. Oon or about May 10, 2004, Investment Firm &
digclosed to TRS that it was going to pay @ finder’s fee to
Individual H. individual H had done no work in relation to

Investment Firm 5's application for TRE investment funds.
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f. TRE staff indicated to LEVINE and others that the
TRE gtaff would recommend that Investment Firm 5 regeive a 8§25
million investment from TRS at the May 2004 TRS Board meeting.

g. on or about May 20, 2004, a TRS staff member
expressed concern to LEVINE about Investment Firm 5's disclosure of
Tndividual H, with whom TRS staff members had not had contact, as
the recipilent of a finder’sz fee. In response, LEVINE tried to
allay the TRS staff member’s concerns in order to help Investment
Firm 5.

h. After LEVINE was approached by law enforcement
agents later that day, LEVINE no longer tried to help Investment
Firm 5. Investment Firm 5's application for TR3 invegtment funds
was not addressed at the May 2004 TRS Beoard meeting.

and Individual I: Investment Firm 6

REZKQ, LEVINE,

9. Tt was further part of the scheme that in the spring of
2004 =hat LEVINE agreed with Individual I, a Chicago businessman
who acted as a placement agent for Investment Firm &, that LEVINE
and REZKO would help Investment Firm 6 obtain investments from TRS
and other Illinois state pensien boards in exchange for Individual
I‘'s payment to LEVINE of two-thirda of the fees that Individual I
would receive from Investment Firm 6 for arranging the investmenta.
REZKO and LEVINE agreed to evenly gplit the portion of the fees
rhat Individual I would pay LEVINE. In connection with this aspect

of the scheme:
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a. In about early 2004 LEVINE learned from Individual
I and others that Investment Firm & was interested in attracting
investments from I1llineis state pension funds, including TRS.

b. LEVINE agreed with Individual I that LEVINE and
REZKDQ would use LEVINE'a3 pogition at TRS and their influence at TRS
and other state pension funds to help Investment Firm 6 obhtain
investments. Individual I agreed that he would split any finder’'s
fees he received from Investment Firm & with LEVINE in exchange for
LEVINE’s assistance. Individual I further agreed to split with
LEVINE the ongoing management fees that Investment Firm é would
carn from investments from TRS. Tndividual I agreed to pay LEVINE
two-thirda of the finder’s fees and management f£ees that Individual
I received so that LEVINE could ghare those fees with REZKO.

c. on or about April 14, 2004, LEVINE advised REZKO
about ﬁEVINE's arrangement with Individual I. REZKO and LEVINE
agreed that they would share evenly the fees that Individual I
would receive for TRS and other Illinois state pension fund
investments in Investment Firm 6. REZKO also agreed to use his
influence with other Illinois state pengion funds to help
Investment Firm 6 obtain investments from those entities. REZKO
and LEVINE each expected to receive at least approximately $1.3
million in fees from Individual I, based on the size of the
investment that REZKO and LEVINE pelieved TRS would make in

Investment Firm 6.
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d. To agsist Investment Firm 6, LEVINE arranged for a
meeting with LEVINE, Loren, Individual I, and representatives of
Investment Firm 6 so that the Investment Firm 6 representatives
could explain their firm and investment products to Loren. At
LEVINE’s request, Loren provided Investment Firm 6 with advice
about how Investment Firm & should proceed with an application for
funds from TRS.

e, On or about May 19, 2004, LEVINE told Individual I
rhat he intended to recommend Investment Firm é to TRS ataff after
the May 2004 TRS Board meeting.

£. At the time that LEVINE was approached by law
enforcement agents on or about May 20, 2004, Investment Firm 6 had
not vet applied for TRS funds. LEVINE did not attempt to help
Investment Firm 6 obtain TRS funds after that date.

REZKO, LEVINE, and Individuval A: Investment Firm 7

10. It was further part of the scheme that during the spring
of 2004, LEVINE used his influence at TRS to delay a planned
allocation of $220 million in TRS funds to Investment Firm 7.
REZKO and LEQINE then agreed to extort a principal of Investment
Firm 7, Individual J, by threatening to withhold the allocation
unless Individual J made a payment. In connection with this aspect
of the scheme:

a. In about early 2004, TRS staff decided to recommend

that the TRS Board allocate available fundes for real estate
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investments among the existing TRS real esgtate managers, which
ineluded Investment Firm 7. TRS ataff further decided to recommend
that TRS invest %220 million with Investment Firm 7 at the February
2004 TRS Board meeting.

b. 1.EVINE arranged to postpone the planned TRS
allocation to Investment Firm 7 in order to force Investment Firm
7 or Tndividual J to pay a fee to LEVINE for his support for the
potential allocation. LEVINE provided information to TRE staff
about a possible sale of Investment Firm 7, which resulted in TRS
ataff recommending at the February 2004 TRS Roard meeting that the
TRS Board postpone the planned allocation to Investment Firm 7.
The TRS Board, including LEVINE, agreed that TRS would not allocate
5220 million to Investment Firm 7 pending further invegtigation.

c. In or about April 2004, REZKO and LEVINE agreed to
uze their influence and LEVINE'=: position at TRS to prevent
Tnvestment Firm 7 from getting its 4220 million allocation unleas
Individual J agreed either to pay an approximately $2 million fee
to a consultant chosen by REZKO and LEVINE, or to arrange for
approximately $1.5 million in political contributions to be made to
a certain public official. REZKO and LEVINE agreed that they would
split the fee paid to the consultant if that was what Individual J
chose to do. REZKO and LEVINE further agreed that LEVINE would
arrange for an intermediary, namely Tndividual A, to indicate to

Individual J that Investment Firm 7 had mnot received its 5220
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million allocation because Investment Firm 7 had not contributed
significantly to a certain public official.

d. In about early May 2004, Individual A told
Individual J that there had been a meeting involving REZKO and
Tndividual B concerning plans for raising political donations from
pension fund managers, and that during this meeting REZKC had
obaerved that Investment Firm 7 had a lot of TRE funds under
management but had not made any political donations. Individual A
told Individual J words to the effect that Investment Firm 7 had
not gotten its $220 million allocation from TRS because of its
failure to make political donations.

e. On or about May 8, 2004, Individual J advised
Individual A that he would not be extorted. Individual A advised
LEVINE of this conversation and told LEVINE that Individual J had
threatened to inform law enforcement about what REZKC and
Tndividual B were doing. Individual A and LEVINE agreed to discuss
the matter with REZKO.

t. on or about May 10, 2004, REZKO, LEVINE, Individual
A, and Individual B agreed that in 1light of Individual J‘=s
reaction, it was too risky to continue demanding money Lrom
Investment Firm 7 or blocking its $220 million allocation. They
further agreed that although Investment Fixm 7 would receive the
4220 million allocation, it would not receive any further business

from any State of Illinois entity, including TRS.
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g. After this meeting Individual A sSpoke with
Individual J on geveral occasions for the purpose of discouraging
him from disclosing the extortion attempt, falgely advising
Individual J that REZKO and LEVINE had nothing to do with
Investment Firm 7's failure to receive its allocaticon, and
representing that LEVINE and Individual A had used their influence
with TRS staff to ensure that Investment Firm 7 would raceive its
allocation.

h. on about May 25, 2004, the TRS Board, including
LEVINE, voted to invest a total of $220 million with Investment
Firm 7.

REZKO, LEVINE and Individual E: TRS Aseet Manager

11. It was further part of the scheme that REZKO and LEVINE
agreed to attempt to obtain financial benefits for REZKO and LEVINE
and their nominees, in connection with TRS's placement of funds
with a real estate asget manager. In connection with this aspect
of the scheme:

a. In or about the Spring of 2004, REZKO and LEVINE
agreed to establish or obtain a company that they or their nominees
owned and controlled. REZKO and LEVINE further agreed that they
would use their influence and LEVINE's peosition at TRS to ensure
that TRS would make hundreds of millions of dollars of real estate
investments with their company. REZKO and LEVINE expected to share

the profits from the company.
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b. In or about April 2004, LEVINE met with Loren to
find out how REZKO, LEVINE, and their nominees could do business
with TRS, including the possibility of setting up a company Lo do
businesz with TRS as an asset manager. LEVINE asked Loren to
present ideas to LEVINE that would allow participation by REZKO,
LEVINE, and their nominees, without such participation being
disclosed to TRS.

C. Loren subseguently advised LEVINE that if a
development company entered into a busineas relationship with an
asset manager, there would be no reguirement to disclose the
ownership of the developer.

d. On or about May 1, 2004, LEVINE and Individual E
agreed to try to find a way to obtain funds from TRS for their own
benefit and the benefit of their nomineeas, by putting someone in
place to be an asset manager for TRS, and by having a developer
selected by LEVINE participate in deals with that asset manager.

REZKO, LEVTNE, and Kiferbaum: Mercy Hospital Kickback

12. It was further part of the scheme that REZKO and LEVINE
agreed that they would use their influence and LEVINE'® position at
the Planning Board to assist Mercy Hospital in receiving approval
of its application to build a hospital in Crystal Lake, in exchange
for a kickback from Kiferbaum. REZKO and LEVINE agreed that they

would share approximately $i miilion or more from Kiferbaum in
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exchange for their assistance. In connection with this aspect of
the scheme:

a. In or about late 2003, LEVINE and Kiferbaum agreed
that LEVINE would use his position as a Planning Board member to
attempt to influence the Planning Board teo approve Mércy's
application to build a hospital in Crystal Lake so that Kiferbaum
Construction Company could build the planned hospital. In exchange
for LEVINE’s help, LEVINE and Kiferbaum agreed that Kiferbaum would
pay a kickback as directed by LEVINE, with the exact amount and
manner of the payments to be determined at a later date.

b. LEVINE told REZKO about Kiferbaum’s willingness to
pay a kickback to ensure that Mercy Hospital’s application for a
CON would be approved. REZKO agreed to support Mercy Hospital’s
application in exchange for a share of Kiferbaum’s kickback. REZKO
and LEVINE agreed that they would split evenly Kiferbaum’'s
kickback, which they expected would be approximately $1 million or
more .

C. At its December 20032 meeting, the Planning Board
issued an intent-to-deny with respect to Mercy Hospital’s
application.

d. On or about April 21, 2004, the Planning Board voted
in favor of granting Mercy Hospital's application for a permit to

build a new hospital. REZKO and LEVINE took steps to, cause other
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Planning Board members to vote to approve Mercy Hespital’s
applicaticon, and LEVINE voted in faver of the application.

e. After the April 21, 2004 Planning Board meeting,
LEVINE directed Kiferbaum to pay the kickback proceeds relating to
the Mercy Hospital project to Individual E. LEVINE, Kiferbaum, and
Individual E agreed to ugse a sham consulting contract to conceal
the fraudulent nature of the intended payments from Kiferbaum to
Individual E.

Concealment

13. It was further part of the scheme that REZKO, and his co-
achemers, including LEVINE, Loren, Cari, and others, did
misrepresent, conceal and hide, and cause to be misrepresented,
goncealed, and hidden, the acts done in furtherance of the scheme
and the purposes of those acts.

14. It was further part of the scheme that, as REZKO was
aware, LEVINE intentionally concealed from and failed to disclose
to the TRS Board and the Planning Board material facts concerning
the financial benefits that REZXK0Q and LEVINE sought to cbtain for
themselves and their nominees from official actions taken by those
Boards and their staff members, as well as ex parte communications
in which LEVINE had engaged with third parties concerning these

official actionsg and related matters pending before the Boards.
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Mail Fraud: Investment Firm 1 Questionnaire Sent to TRS

1. On or about July 18, 2003, at Chicago, in the Neorthern
District of Illinois, Bastern Division,

ANTOIN REZKO, also known as “Tony Rezko,” and
STUART LEVINE,

defendants herein, for the purpose of executing the above-described
cscheme and attempting to do so, knowingly caused to be deposited,
to be sent and delivered by UPS, a commercial interstate carrier,
an envelope from Investment Firm 1 in Chicago, Illineis, and
addressed to TRS in Springfield, Illinois, which envelope contained
a TRS Questionnaire that had been completed by Investment Firm 1;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341,

1344, and 2.
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QUNT TWO

Mail Fraud: Invegtment Firm 1 Pregentation Materials Sent to TRS

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraphs 1 through 14 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment
as though fully set forth herein.

2. On or about July 30, 2003, at Chicago, in the Northern
District of Illincis, Eastern Divisiomn,

ANTOIN REZKO, also known ag “Tony Rezko,” and
STUART LEVINE,

defendants herein, for the purpose of executing the above-dezscribed
scheme and attempting to do so, knowingly caused to be deposited,
to be sent and delivered by UPS, a commercial interstate carrier,
an envelope from Investment Firm 1 in Chicage, Illineois, and
addreased to TRS in Springfield, Illineis, which envelope contained
presentation materials from Investment Firm 1 for the August 2003
TES Board meeting;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341,

1346, and 2.
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COUNT THREE

Wire Fraud: Individual C's Modified Letter Agreement
Faxed to Investment Firm 2

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1, The érand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraphs 1 through 14 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment
23 though fully =zet forth herein.

2. On or about May 1%, 2004, at Chicago, in the Northern
Digtrict of Illinois, Eastern Division,

ANTOIN REZKO, also known as “Tony Rezko,” and
STUART LEVINE,

defendants herein, for the purpose of executing the above-described
gcheme, did knowingly cause to be transmitted by means of wire and
radio communication in interstate commerce sgignals and sounds,
namely a modified Letter Agreement, sent by facsimile, from
Invegtment Firm 2'g2 office in Wayne, Pennsylvania, to Individual
C's office in Chicago, Illinois;

In vicolation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343,

1346, and 2.
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COUNT FOUR

Wire Fraud: Phone Call Between LEVINE & Cari re Investment Firm 4

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraphs 1 through 14 of Count One of this Superseding Indictmeﬁt
as though fully set forth herein.

2. On or about April 14, 2004, at Highland Park, in the
Northern District of Illineois, Eastern Division, and elsewhere,

ANTOIN REZEKQO, also known as “Tony Rezko,” and
STUART LEVINE,

defendants herein, for the purpose of executing the above-described
gcheme, did knowingly cause to be transmitted by means of wire and
radio communication in interstate and foreign commerce signals and
sounds, namely a phone call between LEVINE, in Highland Park,
Illinciz, and Cari, in Hong Kong, in which LEVINE and Cari
digcugged Investment Firm 4 and the name of a consultant to be
provided to Investment Firm 4;

In viclation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343,

1346, and 2.
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COUNT_FIVE

Wire Fraud: Compensation Agreement Faxed to [nvestment Firm 4

The SBPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraphs 1 through 14 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment
as though fully set forth hereimn.

2. on or about May 19, 2004, in the Northern District of
Illinois&, Eastern Division, and elsewhere,

ANTOIN REZKO, also known as “Tony Rezko,” and
STUART LEVINE,

defendants herein, for the purpose of executing the above-described
scheme, did knowingly cause to be transmitted by means of wire and
radio communication in interstate and foreign commerce signals and
sounds, namely a cover letter and a Compensation Agreement, sent by
facgimile, from the Turks & Caicos Islands, BWI, to Investment Firm
4, in Virginia, with the Compensation Agreement gsetting forth terms
for payments to Individual F's company, which was located in
Downeres Grove, Illincis;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343,

1346, and 2.
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COUNT SIX

Wire Fraud: Phone Call Between Cari and Investment Firm 4

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraphs 1 through 14 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment
as though fully =set forth herein.

2. On or about May 20, 2004, at Chicago, in the Northern
District of Illincis, Eastern Division, and elsewhere,

ANTQIN REZKO, also known as “Tony Rezko,” and
STUART LEVINE,

defendants herein, for the purpose of executing the above-described
scheme, did knowingly cause to be transmitted by means of wire and
radio communication in interstate commerce signals and sounds,
namely a phone call between Cari, in Chicago, ITllineis, and
Investment Firm 4, in Virginia, in which Cari apoke to the
Pregident of Investment Firm 4, about the need to gign a consulting
agreement ;

In viclation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343,

1346, and 2.
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COUNT SEVEN

Mail Fraud: Investment Firm 5 Materials Sent To TRS

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and ilncorporates by reference
paragraphs 1 through 14 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment
as though fully set forth herein.

2. On or about May 10, 2004, at Northbrook, in the Northern
Digtrict of Illinois=, Eastern Division,

ANTOIN REZKQ, also known as “Tony Rezko,” and
STUART LEVINE,

defendants herein, for the purpose of executing the above-described:
scheme and attempting to do so, knowingly caused to be deposited,
to be sent and delivered by Federal Express, a commercial
interstate carrier, an envelope from Investment Firm % in
Northbrook, 1Illinois, and addressed to TRS in Springfield,
Illinois, which envelope contained materials relating to Investment
Firm 5's application for a TRS investment;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Secticns 1341,

1346, and 2.
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COUNT ETIGHT

Mail Fraud: Investment Firm 5 Materials Sent To TRS

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporatez by reference
paragraphs 1 through 14 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment
as though fully set forth herein.

2. On or about May 19, 2004, at Northbreook, in the Northern
District of Illinci=, Eastern Diwviaion,

ANTOIN REZKO, also known as “Tony Rezko,” and
STUART LEVINE,

defendants herein, for the purpose of executing the above-described
gcheme and attempting to do so, knowingly caused to be deposited,
to be sgent and delivered by Federal Express, a commercial
interstate carrier, an envelope from Investment Firm 5 in
Northbrook, Illineils, and addressed to TRS in  Springfield,
Illinois, which envelope contained presentation materials from
Investment Firm 5 for the May 2004 TRS Board meeting;

In vieclation of Title 18, United Statez Code, Sections 1341,

1346, and Z.
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COUNT NINE

Wire Fraud: Email Between Loren and Investment Firm 6

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The CGrand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraphs 1 through 14 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment
ag though fully set forth herein.

2. On or about May 7, 2004, at Chicago, in the Northern
Digtrict of Illinois, Eastern Division, and elsewhere,

ANTOIN REZKO, also known as “Tony Rezko,” and
STUART LEVINE,

defendants herein, for the purpose of executing the above-described
gcheme, did knowingly cause to be transmitted by means of wire and
radio communication in interstate commerce signals and sounds,
namely an email from Loren in Chicago, Illinois, to a Investment
Firm &6 representative in Arizona providing advice on Investment
Firm 6'a prospective application to TRS;

In viclation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343,

1346, and 2.

40



Case 1:05-cr-00691 Document 96  Filed 10/05/2006 Page 41 of 65

COUNT TEN

Wire Fraud: Emall Between Loren and Investment Firm &

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further chargesa:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraphs 1 through 14 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment
as though fully set forth herein.

2. On or about May 10, 2004, at Chicago, in the Northern
District of Illinoig, Eastern Division, and elsewhere,

ANTOIN REZKQ, alsc known as “Tony Rezko,” and
STUART LEVINE,

defendants herein, for the purpoge of executing the above-described
scheme, did knowingly cause to be transmitted by means of wire and
radio communication in interstate commerce signals and sounds,
namely an email from Loren in Chicago, Illineis, to an Investment
Firm € representative in Arizona providing advice on Investment
Firm €'s prospective application to TRS;

In viclation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343,

1346, and 2,
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COUNT ELEVEN

Mail Fraud: Letter From Kiferbaum to Mercy Hospital

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraphs 1 through 14 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment
as though fully set forth herein.

2. On or about November 265, 20b3, at Deerfield, in the
Northern District of Illinois, Eastern Division,

ANTOIN REZKQ, also Known as “Tony Rezko,” and
STUAET LEVINE,

defendants herein, for the purpose of executing the above-described
scheme, and attempting to execute the above-described scheme, did
knowingly cause to be placed in an authorized depository for mail
matter, to be sent and delivered by the United States Postal
Service, according to the directionas thereon, an envelope
containing a letter from Kiferbaum to Mercy Hospital, solieciting
the construction contract for the proposed hespital and offering to
help Mercy get approval from the Planning Board, which envelope was
addressed to Mercy Hospital, in Woodstock, Illincis;

In violation of Title 18, United States Cdde, Sections 1341,

1345, and 2.
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COUNT TWELVE

Mail Fraud: Mercy Hospital Approval Letter

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragrapha 1 through 14 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment
as though fully set forth herein.

2. On or about May 24, 2004, at Woodstock, in the Northern
Digtrict of Illinois, Eastern Divisgion,

ANTOIN REZKO, also known as “Tony Rezke,” and
STUART LEVINE,

defendants herein, for the purpose of executing the above-described
gcheme, and attempting to execute the above-described scheme, did
knowingly cause to be delivered by mail according to the directions
thereon, an envelope containing a letter from the Planning Board
confirming that a permit was‘being igsued authorizing Mercy Crystal
Lake Hospital and Medical Center,‘lnc. te build a new hospital,
which envelope was addressed to a representative of Mercy Hospital,
at the hogpital’'s address, in Woodstock, Illinois;

In vioclation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341,

1346, and 2.

43



Case 1:05-cr-00691 Document 96  Filed 10/05/2006 Page 44 of 65

COUNT _THIRTEEN

Wire Fraud: Phone Call Between LEVINE and
Individual E (regarding Investment Firms 3, 6, and 7)

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further chargesg:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraphs 1 through 14 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment
as though fully set forth herein.

2. On or about April 17, 2004, at Highland Park, in the
Northern District of Illineis, Eastern Divigion,

ANTOIN REZKO, also known as “Tony Rezko,” and
STUART LEVINE,

defendants herein, for the purpose of executing the above-desacribed
scheme, did knowingly cause to be transmitted by means of wire and
radio communication in interstate commerce gignals and sounds,
namely a phone call between LEVINE, in Highland Park, Illincis, and
Individual E, in Florida, in which they discussed Investment Firms
3, 6, and 7;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343,

1346, and 2,
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COUNT FQURTEEN

Wire Fraud: Phone Call Between LEVINE and
Individual E (regarding Investment Firm 6 and Mercy Hospital)

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges;

1. The Grand Jury realleges aﬁd incorporates by reference
paragraphs 1 through 14 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment
as though fully set forth herein.

2. On or about April 21, 2004, at Highland Park, in the
Northern District of Illinois, Eastern Division,

ANTOIN REZKQ, also known as “Tony Rezko,” and
STUART LEVINE,

defendants herein, for the purpose of executing the above-desecribed
acheme, did knowingly cause to be transmitted by means of wire and
radio communication in interstate commerce signals and sounds,
namely a phone call between LEVINE, in Highland Park, Illincis, and
Individual E, in Florida, in which they discuszsed Investment Firm
& and Mercy Hospital;

In violaticn of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343,

1346, and 2.
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COUNT FIFTEEN

Wire Fraud: Phone Call Betwean LEVINE and
Individual E (regarding Investment Firma 4, 6, and 7,

Mercy Hogpital, and the Agsszet Management Bugsiness)

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraphs 1 through 14 of Count One of this Superzeding Indictment
as though fully set forth herein.

2. On or about May 1, 2004, at Highland Park, in the
Nerthern District of Illinois, Eastern Division,

ANTOIN REZKO, also known as “Tony Rezko,”
and STUART LEVINE,

defendants herein, for the purpose of executing the above-described
acheme, did knowingly cause to be transmitted by means of wire and
radio communication in interstate commerce gignals and sounds,
namely a phone call between LEVINE, in Highland Park, Illinois, and
Individual E, in Florida, in which they discussedllnvestmant Firms
4, 6, and 7, Mercy Hospital, and the potential TRS asset management
business;

In vielation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343,

1346, and 2.
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COUNT SIXTEEN

Attempted Extortion of Investment Firm 7

The SPECIAL FERRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The Grand Jury reallegezs and incorporates by reference
paragraph 1 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment as though
fully set forth herein.

2. At timez material to this Superseding Indictment,
Investment Firm 7 was a real estate asset manager baged in Chicago,
Illinois, which invested funds on behalf of TRS in various real
esstate projects located throughout the United States.

3. In or about the spring of 2004, at Highland Park and
Chicago, in the Northern District of Tllinois, Eastern Division,
and elsewhere,

ANTOIN REZKO, also known as “Tony Rezko,”
and STUART LEVINE,

defendante herein, and Individual A did attempt to commit
extortion, which extortion would obsatruct, delay, and affect
commerce, in that the defendant attempted to obtain property, in
the form of payments from Investment Firm 7 and Individual J to a
coneultant identified by REZKO and LEVINE or political donations to
3 candidate identified by REZKO and LEVINE, with Investment Firm
7+ 5 and Individual J’s consent induced under the color of official
right, and by the wrongful use of actual and threatened fear of

economic harm;
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In violation of Title 18, United Statez Code, Sections 1951

and 2.

48



Case 1:05-cr-00691 Document 96  Filed 10/05/2006 Page 49 of 65

COUNT SEVENTEEN

Soliecitation of Funda from Individual C
Finder's Feesg Paid by Invegtment Firm 1

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraph 1 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment as though
fully set forth herein.

2. From in or about May 2003 through in or about April 2004,
at Chicage, in the Northern District of Illinois, Eastern Diviesion,
and elsewhere,

STUART LEVINE,

defendant herein, being an agent of TRS, an organization which
during this period received federal benefits in excess of §10,000,
did corruptly solicit, demand, accept, and agree to accept, for the
penefit of REZKO, LEVINE, and others, a thing of value, namely,
payments from Individual C totaling approximately $250,000, to he
paid to Individual D as directed by REZKO and LEVINE, which
payments involved Individual C's splitting finder's fees that he
received from Investment Firm 1; and LEVINE intended to be
influenced and rewarded in connection with the business, a
transaction, and a series of transactions of TRS invelving a thing
of value of §5,000 or more, namely, the placement of TRS funds, and
ANTOIN REZKC, also known as “Tony Rezko,”
defendant herein, did aid and abet LEVINE in committing said
of fense;
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In viclation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 666

(a) {1) (B}, and 2.
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CQUNT EIGHTEEN

Solicitation of Funds from Individual C
(Finder's Fees Expected To Be Paid by Investment Firm 2)

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraph 1 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment as though
fully set forth herein.

2. From in or about the Fall of 2003 through in or about May
2004, at Chicago, in the Northern District of Illinoiz, Eastern
Divisgsion, and =lsewhere,

STUART LEVINE,
defendant herein, being an agent of TRS, an organization which
during this period received federal benefits in exceas of $10,000,
did corruptly solicit, demand, accept, and agree to accept, for the
benefit of REZKO, LEVINE, and others, a thing of value, namely,
payments from Individual ¢ to be paid to a person chosen by REZKO
and LEVINE, which payments inveolved Individual C's gplitting
finder's fees that he would receive from Investment Firm 2; and
LEVINE intended to be influenced and rewarded in connection with
the business, a transaction, and a series of transactions of TRS
involving a thing of value of $5,000 or more, namely, the placement
of TRS funds, and
ANTOIN REZKO, also known as “Tony Rezko,”

defendant herein, did aid and abet LEVINE in committing said
offense;
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tn viclation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 666

(a) (1) (B}, and 2.
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COUNT NINETEEN

golicitation of Funds from Individual C
Finder's Feez Expected To Be Paid by Investment Firm 3

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorperates by raference
paragraph 1 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment as though
fully set forth herein,.

2. From in or about June 2003 through in or about May 2004,
at Chicago, in the Northern District of Illinois, Eastern Division,
and el=sewhers,

STUART LEVINE,
defendant herein, being an agent of TRS, an organization which
during this period received federal benefits in excess of $10,000,
did corruptly solicit, demand, accept, and agree to accept, for the
penefit of REZKO, LEVINE, and others, a thing of wvalue, namely,
payments from Individual C to be paid to a person chosen by REZKO
and LEVINE, which payments involved Individual C's splitting
finder'e fees that he would receive from Investment Firm 3; and
LEVINE intended to be influenced and rewarded in connection with
the businesg, a transaction, and a series of transactions of TRS
involving a thing of value of $5,000 or more, namely, the placement
of TRS funds, and
ANTOIN REZKO, also known as “Tony Rezko,”

defendant herein, did aid and abet LEVINE in committing said
offense;
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In violation of Title 18, United Statez Code, Sections 666

(a) (1) (B), and 2.
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COUNT TWENTY

Bolicitation of Funds from Invegtment Firm 4

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraph 1 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment as though
fully set forth herein. |

2. In or about the spring of 2004, at Highland Park and
Chicago, in the Northern District of Illinecis, Eastern Division,
and elsewhere,

ETUART LEVINE,
defendant herein, being an agent of TRS, an organization which
during a one-year period including the spring of 2004 received
federal benefits in excess of §10,000, did corruptly solicit,
demand, accept, and agree to accept, for the benefit of REEZKO,
LEVINE, and others, a thing of value, namely, payments from
Investment Firm 4 to be pald to a consultant identified by REZKO
and LEVINE, and LEVINE intended to be influenced and rewarded in
connection with the business, a transaction, and a series of
transactions of TRS involving a thing of value of 55,000 or more,
namely, the placement of TRS funds, and

ANTOIN REZEKO, also known as “Tony Rezko,”

defendant herein, did aid and abet LEVINE in committing said

offanse;
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In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 666

(a) (1) (B), and 2.
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COUNT TWENTY -ONE

Solicitation of Funds from Individual G

{Finder's Fees Expected To Be Paid by Investment Firm &)

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraph 1 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment as though
fully zet forth herein.

2. From in or about the Spring of 2004 through in or about
May 2004, at Chicageo, in the Northern District of Illineois, Eastern
Division, and elsewhere,

STUART LEVINE,
defendant herein, being an agent of TRS8, an organization which
during a one-year pericd including the spring of 2004 received
federal benefits in excess of 510,000, did corruptly seolicit,
demand, accept, and agree to accept, for the benefit of REZKO,
LEVINE, and others, a thing of value, namely, payments from Finder
3 to be paid to a person chosen by REZKO and LEVINE, which payments
involved Finder 3's gplitting finder's fees that he would receive
from Investment Firm 6; and LEVINE intended to be influenced and
rewarded in connection with the business, a transaction, and a
gseries of transactions of TRS involving a thing of value of $5,000
or more, namely, the placement of TRS funds, and
ANTOQIN REZKO, also known ags “Tony Rezko,”

defendant herein, did aid and abet LEVINE in committing s=aid
offense;
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In vicolation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 666

(a) (1) (B}, and 2.
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COUNT TWENTY -TWO

Solicitation of Funds from Individual J and Inveatment Firm 7

The SPECIAL FEBRRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further chargea:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraph 1 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment asg though
fully set forth herein.

2. From in or about January 2004 through in or about May
2004, at Chicago, in the Northern District of Illinois, Eastern
Division, and elsewhere,

STUART LEVINE,
defendant herein, being an agent of TR5, an crganizaticn which
during a one-year period including during this time received
federal benefits in excess of 510,000, did corruptly solicit,
demand, accept, and agree to accept, for the benefit of REZKO,
LEVINE, and cthera, a thing of wvalue, namely, contributions from
Individual J and Investment Firm 7 to a political candidate chosen
bv REZKO and LEVINE, and LEVINE intended to be influenced and
rewarded in connection with the business, a transaction, and a
geries of transactions of TRS invelving a thing of value of 5,000
or more, namely, the placement of TRS funds, and
ANTOIN REZKQ, alz2o known as “Tony Rezko,”
defendant herein, did aid and abet LEVINE in committing =aid

offenge;
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In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 666

(a) (1) (B), and 2.
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COUNT TWENTY - THREE

Money Laundering of Investment Firm 1 Fees

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraphse 1 through 14 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment
as though fully set forth herein.

2. On or about March 4, 2004, at Chicago, in the Northern
District of Illinois, Eastern Division,

ANTOIN REZKOQ, also known as “Tony Rezko,”
and STUART LEVINE,

defendants herein, knowingly caused to be conducted a financial‘
transaction affecting interstate commerce, when Individual C gave
Individual D a $125,000 check drawn on a JP Morgan Chase Bank
account made out to an company controlled by Individual D, which
involved the proceeds of specific unlawful activity, namely mail

fraud in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341

and 1346, knowing that the transaction was designed in whole and in
part to conceal the nature, source, ownership, and contrel of the
proceeds of said specified unlawful activity and that while
conducting and attempting to conduct such financial transaction
knew that the property involwved in the financial transaction,

represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity;

1n violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections

1958 {a) (1) {B) (L) and 2.
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COUNT TWENTY - FOUR

Money Laundering of Investment Firm 1 Fees

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 200%5-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraphs 1 through 14 of Count One of this Superseding Indictment
as though fully set forth herein.

2. on or about April 26, 2004, at Chicago, in the Northern
Digtrict of Illineois, Eaétern Divigion,

ANTOIN REZKO, also known as “Tony Rezko,”
and STUART LEVINE,

defendants herein, knowingly caused to be conducted a financial
transaction affecting interstate commerce, when Individual C gave
Tndividual D a 3125,000 check drawn on a JP Morgan Chase Bank
account made out to an company controlled by Individual D, which
involved the proceeds of specific unlawful activity, namely mail
fFraud in vioclation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341
and 1346, knowing that the transaction was designed in whole and in
part to ceonceal the nature, source, ownership, and control of the
proceeds of said specified unlawful activity and that while
conducting and attempting to conduct such financial transaction
knew that the property invelved in the financial transaction,
represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections

1956 (a) (1) (B) (I} and 2.
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FORFEITURE ALLEGATION

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The allegations contained in Counts 1-15 and 17-22 of
this Superseding Indictment are realleged and incorporated herein
by reference for the purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to
Title 18, United States Code, Section 981 (a) (1} (¢} and Title 28,
United States Code, Section 2461 (o).

2. As a result of his violations of Title 18, United States
Code, Sections 1341, 1343, and 666 as alleged in the foregoing
Supergeding Indictment,

ANTOIN REZKD, also known as “Tony Rezko,”
defendant herein, shall forfeit to the United States, pursuant to
Title 18, United States Code, Section, 881 (a) (1) (¢) and Title 28,
United States Code, Section 2461(c), any and all right, title and
interest in property, real and persconal, which constitutes and is
derived from proceeds traceable to the charged offenses.

3. The interests of the defendants subject to forfeiture
pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Sectioen, 981 (a) (1) {c) and
Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461 (c¢) include but are not
limited to, approximately $250,000.

4. If any of the funds subject to forfeiture and described
above, as a result of any act or omissgion of the defendant:

{a) Cannot be located upon the exercise of due
diligence;

(b) Have been transaferred or sold to, or deposited with,
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a third party;

(o) Have been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the
Court;

(d}) Have been substantially diminished in value; or

(e) Have been commingled with other property which
cannot be divided without difficulty,

the United States of America shall be entitled to forfeiture of
substitute property, including but not limited to, the following
property, under the provisions of Title 21, United States Code,
Section 853 (p), as incorporated by Title 28, United States Code,
Section 2461 (c):

(i) The real property commonly known as: 1250 Chestnut
Avenue, Wilmette, Illinois, legally described as follows:

Lot 2 in Cyrus-Chestnut Subdivision in the west half of
the Southwest quarter of Section 27, Township 42 North,
Range 13, Bast of the Third Principal Meridian;

PIN: 05-27-300-087-0000; and,

(i1} The real property commonly known as: 880 South Lake
Shore Drive, Unit 28, Lake Geneva, Wisconsin, legally
described as follows:

Unit 28 and so much of the undivided interest in the
common areas and facilities appurtenant to such unit in
the percentage specified and established in the
hereinafter mentioned declaration and amendments thereto
in a condominium commonly known asg @ steone  maner
condominium, formerly Kknown as Newport condominium
created under the condominium ownership act of the state
of Wisconsin by declaration recorded on November 13, 1978
in the office of the register of deeds for Walworth
County, Wisconsin in Volume 223, Pages 114 to 18l
inalusive, as document number 40892, and by amendments
thereto;

Permanent Real Estate Index Number: ZCNQQO004,
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All pursuwant to Title 18, United States Code, Section

681{a) (1) {c) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461 (c).

A TRUE BILL:

-

Ty

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
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